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2 H W=
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE—_E-_—F=-A=+—RIFE for the year ended 31 March 2021
(CABEEF Thi5)R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RKEAEFESH2WA Revenue from contracts with

customers 4 448,678 452,329
EERR Operating costs 5 (449,849) (449,299)
EE(B1E) BF (Loss)/Profit from operations (1,171) 3,030
H U A Other income 6 37,785 36,105
FERF Profit for the year 36,614 39,135
HAh2mE K= Other comprehensive income - -
FEAZEHKA Total comprehensive income

for the year 36,614 39,135
EE & E O | =R Rate of return on fixed assets 7 -0.3% 1.2%

FNREVN9ENM AR EHRERAH—ZLD -

The notes on pages 92 to 119 form part of these financial statements.
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BRI A
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-_ZE_—F=A=+—H as at 31 March 2021
(CABHEEF T3 7R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

kREBEE Non-current assets
ME - RENREM Property, plant and equipment 8 291,849 283,726
FREEE Right-of-use assets 9(a) 25,322 32,371
BILEE Intangible assets 10 60,415 32,688
SN B & 17 K Placement with the Exchange
Fund 11 821,662 695,826
1,199,248 1,044,611
REBEE Current assets
JFE U iR 3k N2 EL At Trade and other receivables
JE W kI8 12, 13(a) 28,812 26,137
FEUNEEE ATIEZX  Amounts due from related
parties 13(a) 14,186 6,701
RITFER Bank deposits 343,000 492,000
RE NIEITES Cash and bank balances 10,684 17,996
396,682 542,834
RBEE Current liabilities
PR AEW A Deferred revenue 13(b) 12,666 9,620
BEPE® Customers’ deposits 14 46,245 45,287
JE A<F MR K K E A Trade and other payables
J& < 3} 18 9,701 22,084
FEfTREE ALWREL  Amounts due to related parties 9,055 4,700
HEAE Lease liabilities 9(b) 3,638 6,603
EERAEE Provision for employee benefits 15 19,549 11,809
100,854 100,103
REBEEFE Net current assets 295,828 442,731
BEERERFARE Total assets less current liabilities 1,495,076 1,487,342
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
R AE WA Deferred revenue 13(b) 8,560 6,565
HEAE Lease liabilities 9(b) 22,139 26,142
B BEFBE Provision for employee benefits 15 68,595 77,726
99,294 110,433
EERH NET ASSETS 1,395,782 1,376,909
EXRHE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
EEESEN Trading fund capital 16 118,300 118,300
fRE8 & F Retained earnings 17 1,277,482 1,258,609
1,395,782 1,376,909
EEELL )P Ms Joyce TAM, JP
T MRS EE T ELIE General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund
T -FhAhA=-+—H 21 September 2021

FREVN9ENMF AT IEHRERA—BD -

The notes on pages 92 to 119 form part of these financial statements.
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1:'"'} < 45k E}J ==
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

@i_gi—iiﬂ =+—BItFE for the year ended 31 March 2021

(CABEEF Thi5)R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
L
Note 2021 2020
EFENEER Balance at beginning of year 1,376,909 1,389,676
FRELEKS Total comprehensive income for
the year 36,614 39,135
B A E | Statutory return to the
Government 17 (17,741) (51,902)
TEFERAMNERR Balance at end of year 1,395,782 1,376,909

FREVN9ENM AR EHRERA—ZLD -

The notes on pages 92 to 119 form part of these financial statements.
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90

HEMER
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE—_E_—F=-A=+—RIEE for the year ended 31 March 2021
(CABHEEF T3 R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2021 PAOYAQ

EESEEHMNWHRELAKE Cash flows from operating

activities

EBIE(EE) &F]  (Loss)/Profit from operations (1,171) 3,030
e KN Depreciation and amortisation 36,626 28,651
HEBRENTNE Interest expense on lease

gl liabilities 454 572
BEYE  REK&  Loss on disposal of property,

M EHE plant and equipment 19 -
FE W 2k 18 N FE U 8 (Increase)/Decrease in

A TIRRE receivables and amounts due

($#hn),/E from related parties (11,223) 4,398
IEE U A B350 Increase in deferred revenue 5,041 2,919
2 EIRS RN Increase in customers’ deposits 958 938
FEfTFIE N FERfRE  (Decrease)/Increase in payables

A TR and amounts due to related

CRA) /1 parties (153) 2.301
EERMNBEED (Decrease)/Increase in provision

CRLA) /180 for employee benefits (1,391) 2,235

REEETHH Net cash from operating

HEE5 activities 29,160 45,044

FREV9ENMFARNTIEHRERA—ZBD o

The notes on pages 92 to 119 form part of these financial statements.
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RETHHNHELAKE Cash flows from investing

(%) STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

activities
JRB HARR & 31E A Decrease in bank deposits with
LA EHVERITIERK original maturities over three
B R months 149,000 45,000
BBEYE - REKX  Purchase of property,
BEMMEBELEE plant and equipment, and
intangible assets (73,324) (50,613)
HEYE - REN  Proceeds from disposal of
BT property, plant and equipment 3 46
INEEL B TF FRHY Increase in placement with
0 the Exchange Fund (125,836) (19,610)
A& NS Interest received 38,848 34,098
(BAR),/®KHBKRE  Net cash (used in)/from
EENEESFEE investing activities (11,309) 8,921
MEZTHNWIRELAKRE Cash flows from financing
activities
R BAFERTR  Statutory return paid to
the Government (17,741) (51,902)
MERIE Lease payments 9(b) (7,422) (8,436)
ARREESN Net cash used in financing
HE T activities (25,163) (60,338)
HERZEREREM  Net decrease in cash and
WA FEE cash equivalents (7,312) (6,373)
EFINRER Cash and cash equivalents
ZQE8E$ at beginning of year 17,996 24,369
EFENBEER Cash and cash equivalents
ZEARE at end of year 18 10,684 17,996

FREN9ENMFARTEHRERA—ZLD -

The notes on pages 92 to 119 form part of these financial statements.

38 ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

91



R 75 R MY ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BrBEFERRIN - FTE S FEHIA (Amounts expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars,
BT TAIR) unless otherwise stated)
1. B GENERAL

MABE—NAN=ZFNA=ZTERB(LEESRHN(F4I30F)E3 « AN6IHRBARER -
E-NAN=ZFN\A-—BRUTHEMREZEES((EL]) - LHEMEREFHIIZHEHN
T B RRMIARIT LI EM S E - WA RS IR HE R L5 A B+t 42 8BRS M &R
B o BESh - L MR MRRCEEME RGP (F344T) AR MBR TN DABH A E
He (AR R AR 5 o

The Land Registry Trading Fund (“the Fund”) was established on 1 August 1993 under the
Legislative Council Resolution passed on 30 June 1993 pursuant to sections 3, 4 and 6 of
the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430). The Land Registry administers a land registration
system by maintaining an up-to-date Land Register and provides its customers with
services and facilities for searches of the Land Register and related land records. The Land
Registry also processes applications for the incorporation of owners and provides related
services under the Building Management Ordinance (Cap. 344).

2. TESITHEER SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 AFEERRH Statement of compliance

AMBHRERRRBEAEAANG A RAUEBAEYHREEN(LARGHE  EFERE
BEMASRTNMEERNENTEVKRESER  FERFLEANZE)FH -
ESHRPANEIESTBRBEDOD -

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"), a collective term which includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Fund is set out below.

BEGFEAGEN TETHEILETNBTEVERELENINESH ARG HE R
EEK A HIERIIRA - RSN EERMETERN LM At ATt HNE
ARERNE (B ERRERTHRE - GHEER N ES

The HKICPA has issued certain new or revised HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Fund. Note 3
provides information on the changes, if any, in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Fund for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

2.2 R ENESE Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

AP HRENBREEGAREXARGTE ©

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these financial statements. is
historical cost.
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AR FMIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FESHHRE@ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 iRBEBI SRR MW E % (m)  Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

RENEBTEYHRELANTHBREAFTEZEERBELHE  E5t RER - ZFHE -
At RBREFESHTBERNER AREERRBEMBRA R BB 2HRNE - %FHh
AANEENRE  ORNELRLAEMERBBRATHR A BENEERMGIF o MER
BEMBEXRBEAIHZ2E - AleRAZEATABERIESHATEHEERABNIRAE
MEE - EHERNEREREEBATR -

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

ZEMF REMKBORRSERERT - MEFTSAEARAREECTH  FHEFS
HEZEFTHARRER  WETRZEASTHERRNEH > MSEEFTHMRENES
HIRRERR -

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

ESHERSF BRI ALY REMBSRAOSTHE - BERYRRELOERR - HE
BEBMBFBRETAFENTHRARE  ETRUABKREARR @ BHEEMEENIR
& B SR AMREAT

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the application of the Fund’s
accounting policies. There are also no key assumptions concerning the future,
or other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the next year.

23 WMBERSHERS Financial assets and financial liabilities
(a) FBEZRHE Initial recognition and measurement

ETMEREERRINEES TR  BUOIRR R HEMERRIE - BEREEALIR
o RITIFER - ARIR S RIRITHERR ©

The Fund’s financial assets comprise placement with the Exchange Fund, trade
and other receivables, amounts due from related parties, bank deposits, and cash

and bank balances.
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A& R ZRHIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FESTTHE® SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

23 SRIBEENSREE @ Financial assets and financial liabilities

(a)

(b)

(continued)

AiptER Kt E(#)  Initial recognition and measurement
(continued)

HEMEeRMBEEREPEE  BNRAEEMENTIE  BANBEALIRR - H
ERE AREBBMEE -

The Fund’s financial liabilities comprise customers’ deposits, trade and other
payables, amounts due to related parties, lease liabilities and provision for
employee benefits.

HeEKRABER ITANGNET ST ZARREHTREENERAE - 1]
BHERE  SREENERMAGBERATENE  BNLIBEARBEZTREE
FETZEFCHEEMERIIBNRFKA

The Fund recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. At initial
recognition, financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value
plus or minus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets or the issue of the financial liabilities.

ST EREETE Classification and subsequent measurement

EeKEMBEREEN BAERAERN XX REHKANENE  AREHESH
BENBBANRSRBENNEBERAMNTES - BEOBRSRESAINNLSE
RFB - @B ENEIREBREMT23(MANTEREREBRERELAE -

The Fund classifies all financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, on the basis that they are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold them for collection of contractual cash
flows and the contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest. The measurement of loss allowances for financial assets is based on the
expected credit loss model as described in note 2.3(d).

BRI WFMEZEE S THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG



AR FMIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. TESTHE® SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

23 SRIEENSREE @ Financial assets and financial liabilities

(continued)

(b) 7 EREEE &) Classification and subsequent measurement

(c)

(continued)

ERMERZESHECHEEXSMBENEHENAE  ARED REREHEHEH
MBWARTHMTE - ERMNEXEEAKZEREEXSRBEEARAEAN
BBl RERZEREENRAAERZ SR A B EXAEERD
BRI R - RS AFEERINXRE  @ZBZeR T ANMAESNKRFTUGEERESR
B ETEHRENERER ARAESHEERNRIAMAMA WA g
TENETNER  RENARAA MG ESITE -

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating and recognising the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of
the financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Fund
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees received or paid between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

ETHEMEERABEDBRERUNERMN X IREHKANETE -

The Fund classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

A EREBEXSREENEBRALREDR  THAREEEN »E - @A
BETNEEFH DL

The Fund reclassifies a financial asset when and only when it changes its business
model for managing the asset. A financial liability is not reclassified.

TR Derecognition
ERERMEEWDHERENGNENERE  IZeREEERERENRBRE
DR R EREDEER 2 MEES I HER o

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or where the financial asset together with
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.
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A& R ZRHIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FESTTHE® SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

23 SRIBEENSREE @ Financial assets and financial liabilities

(c)

(d)

(continued)
7t B 1B R () Derecognition (continued)
EAAERANEBEBRRKEUE - BN 2B BRI HER -

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged or cancelled, or when it expires.

THEERE Impairment of financial assets

HEeHIRBHKANETEN S BB E (BUIRZER SN ) B B 38R B AR T AR
EEHERABELREREENBEREEFEREBREXERE  BREAEENGER
BEEUAR B )40 MR AR5 A E 21

The Fund applies a three-stage approach to measure expected credit losses
on financial assets (other than trade receivables) measured at amortised cost
and to recognise the corresponding loss allowances and impairment losses or
reversals, with the change in credit risk since initial recognition determining the
measurement bases for expected credit losses:

F1MEER - 1218 AR EE A EE
Stage 1: 12-month expected credit losses

HFENRERAR B TANEARRILEAFEN - 2HBEREREES KR
EHREBRI2EAANATEZENZOSHIIBOEMEREROE D T AER -

For financial instruments for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the portion of the lifetime expected credit
losses that represent the expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date are recognised.

F2MEER - 2HTEHREREE - EERARIE
Stage 2: Lifetime expected credit losses—not credit impaired

EBEVIAHERIAR - @RI ANERERAEEN  BEXIHEREE  2HEBHE
AER(RRECRTANBHAERNAANAERIELENENSHSIBNAREN
B18R) T IARER -

For financial instruments for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition but that are not credit impaired, lifetime expected
credit losses representing the expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the financial instruments are recognised-

BRI WFMEZEE S THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG



AR FMIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FEEFBER@W SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

23 SRIEENSREE @ Financial assets and financial liabilities

(continued)

(d) = /& & E Bl e (&) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
FIEER - 2HERERERE —FERRE

Stage 3: Lifetime expected credit losses —credit impaired

EeMTADRERARE  SRR2EHENEAER  FlEIKA SR ERFZ
S SR A T 3 IR T (B AR 2 -

For financial instruments that have become credit impaired, lifetime expected
credit losses are recognised and interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost rather than the gross carrying
amount.

EURIRFNEREGE - ERASNEHNRNEABENSETE -

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses.

1 EFEEHRERAE  Determining significant increases in credit risk
byl

EBEARSE  EELBERMIANREAMNINBERARERTHNERER
HARRENNER  AFFHERTANERERESAEEN - EHEFESZE
BHENEBEFLER  URAFBENEN BHLE-BIZR-—BAUXEREE
MESTRRAESREETNZENSMN  ZeREESRTERERRE -

At each reporting date, the Fund assesses whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk for financial instruments since initial recognition by
comparing the risk of default occurring over the remaining expected life
as at the reporting date with that as at the date of initial recognition. The
assessment considers quantitative and qualitative historical information as well as
forward-looking information. A financial asset is assessed to be credit impaired
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
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A& R ZRHIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FESTTHE® SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

23 SRIBEENSREE @ Financial assets and financial liabilities

(continued)

(d) = /& & E Bl e () Impairment of financial assets (continued)

L EEZHERAE  Determining significant increases in credit risk
(&) (continued)

Eoa@pIsiGe B E LB VRERAURERRRE S ANEIEM - LGS THE
ms ' RIARAREARRFENEERE  AZERKRERM - ERARRTR
KEMABEREE -

The Fund assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition on an individual or collective basis. For collective
assessment, financial instruments are grouped on the basis of shared credit risk
characteristics, taking into account investment type, credit risk ratings and other
relevant factors.

9|\ﬁ|31§ FRABRERNNBRITFRAERABERERRAR -Hte@ T AEEED

K BXZEFIERAEBEEENCRHABRTEGYNRERERTE €
?&Zﬁﬁ?ﬁfﬁﬁﬂ“ c N ESR T AENERRAR WA TE R B VIIRERARILEX
TEIE H0 o

T

Placements with banks with an external credit rating of investment grade are
considered to have a low credit risk. Other financial instruments are considered
to have a low credit risk if they have a low risk of default and the counterparty
or borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term. The credit risk on these financial instruments is assessed as not
having increased significantly since initial recognition.

FERBEEREIND  ZeREESHEBRERERGNE - ZAFEEETHKAB L
ZRFIMEEHBSBREME -  HRKEITAIRMEN SRS E2E Wtk AME

When a financial asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the related loss
allowance. Such assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have
been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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AR FMIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FESHHRE@ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

23 SRIEENESREE® Financial assets and financial liabilities

(continued)

(d) £FEE R 5 (&) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

SrETER = A EE Measurement of expected credit losses

ERMTEANFEHEABERZ SR T AERMA NIRRT MR A
MERBREIMEERRENHRE) - RRES/ARREVENTESNRERE
HESHEHWINETREMERNER - EeRMEEERS ARIEERRIE -
HEeRIEZEEMNRMEABEANNRTARZEENRITERMERARREETR
XReRENBEMERNZBFERHNEREE -

Expected credit losses of a financial instrument are an unbiased and probability-
weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls)
over the expected life of the financial instrument. A cash shortfall is the
difference between the cash flows due to the Fund in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Fund expects to receive. For a financial asset
that is credit impaired at the reporting date, the Fund measures the expected
credit losses as the difference between the asset’s gross carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original
effective interest rate.

2.4 Y% - REREM Property, plant and equipment
R—NAN=FN\A-—BEBESTNYE RELSM - KK AEREILESMEE
RUEGHRBZRPINEEAR - B—NWN=FN\NA-—BEBENDE RENSH
MIREABAR
Property, plant and equipment appropriated to the Fund on 1 August 1993 were
measured initially at deemed cost equal to the value contained in the Legislative

Council Resolution for the setting up of the Fund. Property, plant and equipment
acquired since 1 August 1993 are capitalised at their costs of acquisition.

T3 - 3R 1B R AR (B 910 Rt 8 R AE (TR E A B 50K (W1 EE2.7)
— R-AAZFNA-RRBESARHRED LR
— RERHM AEBWBH OTE  RAREE  LREMBEH -

The following property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses (note 2.7):

— buildings held for own use appropriated to the Fund on 1 August 1993; and

— plant and equipment, including computer equipment, motor vehicles, furniture
and fittings, and other equipment.
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A& R ZRHIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FESTTHE® SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Y% - RIERJ[M (0 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

WERERYE RELBVMOGAIERFEE  UEREEHDR G RSEROK
AME - BRAMGE A ERFEHRAT

— BEY 304
— EIEEM 5-10%
- B2 EKAEREE 54
- ”’E 54

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives

as follows:

— Buildings 30 years
— Computer equipment 5-10 years
— Equipment, furniture and fittings 5 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years

R—AN=FNA-BRFESNEEYAENTHE/IFNEEE -

The land on which the Fund’s buildings are situated as appropriated to the Fund on
1 August 1993 is regarded as a non-depreciating asset.

HEWE  REESVMONEEULEMFFRESENRAEZHANZRIORE - UHE
HEBREm R R AR -

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
on the date of disposal.

25 8 Leases

HESREAMB AT HBRARRARIESERAEEELARNEERREG EIZ2HENR
B SREEMANEASATHERHENMEEEEERENHETESEHEEHNNRA
NEREFAZEEESR -

A lease is recognised in the statement of financial position as a right-of-use asset with
a corresponding lease liability at the lease commencement date, except that variable
lease payments and payments associated with short-term leases having a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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AR FMIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. TESTHE® SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.5 HE @) Leases (continued)

2.6

EREEESRRAENREZANERREBEAE(NE2.7) ZEAREEREE
HIREENEAAERFHMETNREENERENE -

A right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (note 2.7). The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the asset’s estimated useful life.

HERERAEREHEXNOEEFANREFE - XYAHERS AR - %A
KARBEHE @ IAESHNBEEGEHANEFR  HEAGEERREEREENH S EAR
SN TEERIBEFE -

The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Fund’s incremental borrowing rate. The lease
liability is subsequently adjusted by the effect of the interest on and the settlement of
the lease liability.

FESHBAHSGRTEEREEIRIIHEZERNN G HEABGKENGFE - &
ENAEHERER  FHEAREENREOES(FHEERAR  EXREEENK
HEERLET  ABEERABRSIAZEBER

The lease liability is remeasured if the Fund changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise an extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or
is recorded in the statement of comprehensive income if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

BREE Intangible assets

BREEEARBANEKEHEBEEERNEMNEMEERXFERANE - EEIEERM
RBRAERMEAT MESERHERREETKMAETIIE  ERNHAZXBHSHENR
- ERXLERBEERTIERMEER - B EERKANENR T8 85 M ERRE
EBAIR (H5E2.7) -

Intangible assets include acquired computer software licences and capitalised
development costs of computer software programmes. Expenditure on development
of computer software programmes is capitalised if the programmes are technically
feasible and the Fund has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes direct labour and cost of
materials. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses (note 2.7).
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A& R ZRHIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FESTTHE® SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.6 B EE @ Intangible assets (continued)

B EENBHRMEARAEAFRHGEI10F) MEREIAZTHWER ©

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the statement of comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

2.7 FEESREEMNRE Impairment of non-financial assets

FEMEE(BRYE %ﬁfﬁ&”"ﬁ EREEENELEE)WIREEESERS AT
i UEEEEHBERETR - A RETRME E M IREES PR E TR E R - Bl
ERRERESERMB SR AR - & ER AW E SRR R E A FER T &R AEE
EmMERHRSE -

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets, including property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets, are reviewed at each reporting
date to identify any indication of impairment. If there is an indication of impairment,
an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

2.8 ZEAE Cash equivalents

FRBASEEMLOTEAESNRE  ZFREEBARESRRA TEBE3MEA - LR
AEBSCMBENRES  MEBEZHNERTK -

Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at the date of acquisition.

2.9 IRIEYW A Deferred revenue

Eﬁ%&?LHEﬁ&%%?‘Eﬂ EEPXMNNRE  KESEBERERHINKEURIE £
SREANEERAR/ETWA - RS EBERBABTEHBROEER - SEHER
ELH&)\ I FEULA DA TERR

If a customer pays consideration, or the Fund has an unconditional right to
consideration, before the Fund transfers a service to the customer, the Fund
recognises its contract liability as deferred revenue. The Fund derecognises the
deferred revenue and recognises revenue when the Fund transfers the service and,
therefore, satisfies its performance obligation.
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AR FMIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FESHHE@E SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
210 EEA Employee benefits

HeWMEEBREAKENAGNET - He M RFRAXHERBRMHESE BIRS
FIEFENBEERRAK - IAKEMS @ BEMGEEMNAXBREEEFRITTHRE
BRE(TBRD&ETEENEREMEERHN HEREBRHEEHRGAEFEH

The employees of the Fund comprise civil servants and contract staff. Salaries, staff
gratuities and annual leave entitlements are accrued and recognised as expenditure in
the year in which the associated services are rendered by the staff. For civil servants,
staff on-costs, including pensions and housing benefits provided to the staff by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“the Government”), are
charged as expenditure in the year in which the associated services are rendered.

REAZERREGRAIENAKENREABEBREN N TRF AR & & HX
o EME TRRFIERESFSMERN2m P EmR A -

For civil servants employed on pensionable terms, their pension liabilities are
discharged by reimbursement of the staff on-costs charged by the Government. For
other staff, contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged to the
statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

211 A 9 TR AR Revenue recognition

A SHENEFPBEMARNRBABITERNE LR  RESBRHMR B ZIBRBH
BERENTHE  HREPAONKEA -

The Fund recognises revenue from contracts with customers when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised service to a customer, at the
amount of consideration to which the Fund expects to be entitled in exchange for the
service.

M B AL E RN R IEAEE 77 AR -
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

2.12 5 Foreign currency translation

AEEINER S  BRHEANERREABT - LFBEHEOEREERAE - 1
s BRI R R AT - SNERHE RN REE B E2ERART
" -

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
using the spot exchange rates at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong
Kong dollars using the closing exchange rate at the reporting date. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensiverincome.
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BB R EMIFE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FESTTHE® SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
213BEEAL Related parties

HERRB(EEESKRIDRY  YBBRFNE T —EBILSHEML - FA ES2EH
FEBSTEEZEEATETRS -  GEBEBEATERBRASRRRB LI - EMeE
e UMXBEMESKBFYEEEAZE NNV R E TH#E -

The Fund is a separate accounting entity within the Government established under
the Trading Funds Ordinance. During the year, the Fund has entered into transactions
with various related parties, including government bureaux and departments, other
trading funds and financially autonomous bodies controlled or significantly influenced
by the Government, in the ordinary course of its business.

3. STBENE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ARG AGRA TETHRALEITNETEMBRELERNIRESHAGHIERE
Mo BRARAMBEHRRAERFENSTHR - WARARELERMA EASE -

The HKICPA has issued certain new or revised HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Fund. There have been no changes to the accounting
policies applied in these financial statements for the years presented as a result of these
developments.

HESWRARMERNS B A R E R E AT ERI SR (B FE22) -

The Fund has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period (note 22).

4. REEFEHNZBWA REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS
PHIE i Registration of documents 163,763 176,950
& it Search 94,523 86,762
IR Copying 84,782 78,932
FRRE Reports on title 51,063 47,484
B IRTNIRTE e-Alert services 31,258 30,338
2T VREBRG Owners’ corporation services 10,667 15,464
Hb Others 12,622 16,399
HwE Total 448,678 452,329

104 FHETHFMEZEES THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG



AR FMIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. FEEFASH W A@m REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS (continued)

ESERXPROTHNBEANEE T2 NATPEAMEXHFEMREN LB LMNE
LA iRT - RPARBRERGAHEETCENRFE  EBRCEESHUIKRS -
ABNERGE - ESRERBERBNRAKETEOET LR REBEIRAARL FIAERIK
% o

The Fund’s performance obligations in contracts with customers mainly involve providing
services, for registration of documents and searches of the Land Register and related land
records, to the customers. A customer is required to pay a fixed amount of service fee
for each service in advance, or opt to have service fees being charged monthly by opening
an account with the Fund. The Fund satisfies its performance obligation as the service is
rendered and recognises the fee over time based on a cost-to-cost method.

EREEATREEIVREZERE T H RS ERHREOARSETENEE - LR
R E R E 28R AT N ERRFEE -

For owners’ corporation services provided to related parties, the Fund satisfies its
performance obligation as the service is rendered and recognises a service fee over time on
a full cost recovery basis.

5. BER OPERATING COSTS
2021 2020
ETE&HA Staff costs 342,152 341,223
—RREER General operating expenses 17,164 17,999
BB R X Computer service charges 30,937 35,083
HehEREB Rental and management charges 19,013 20,076
FRITHE R Central administrative overheads 3,210 5,555
HrE Ny Depreciation and amortisation 36,626 28,651
ETER Audit fees 747 712
e Total 449,849 449,299
6. HAUgA OTHER INCOME
2021 2020
ME Interest from:
—RITIER —bank deposits 8,827 14,883
—INEE TR —placement with the
Exchange Fund 28,958 21,176
BEEYWE  KBENX Gain on disposal of property,
g2 M i 2 plant and equipment - 46
s Total 37,785 36,105
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BB R EMIFE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

7. EEEERHE RATE OF RETURN ON FIXED ASSETS

BEEERBERAEZERFZ(TEEFNNEWARUNBEEEFLSFESE  WAED
MARAKRE BEFEERBREDE REMBMMEREE - EEE S AT LUEE| BB A7)
REFTHNEFEETEERZORRA59%(ZFE_FF :59%) °

The rate of return on fixed assets is calculated as total comprehensive income (excluding
interest income) divided by average net fixed assets, and expressed as a percentage. Fixed
assets include property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets only. The Fund is
expected to meet a target rate of return on fixed assets of 5.9% (2020: 5.9%) per year as
determined by the Financial Secretary.

8. ¥ - - RERH\BM PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

SN
TR B BAR
BEW =M kE

Land Equipment,
and Computer Furniture Motor
Buildings Equipment and Fittings Vehicles

B Cost

E-Z—A%  At1April 2019

MA—H 350,000 184,756 18,996 244 553,996
NE Additions - 17,607 7,800 - 25,407
HeE Disposals - (4,324) (1,208) - (5,532)

—Z-Z%F At 31 March 2020

=R=+—H 350,000 198,039 25,588 244 573,871
E-ZT-FF  At1April 2020

WHA—H 350,000 198,039 25,588 244 573,871
NE Additions - 19,208 5,742 - 24,950
HE Disposals - (26,392) (407) - (26,799)
E-E-_—-% At 31 March 2021

=A=+-H 350,000 190,855 30,923 244 572,022

it E Accumulated
depreciation

“T-AE  At1April 2019

WHA—H 98,848 168,878 14,247 244 282,217
FRNER Charge for the year 3,850 6,772 2,838 - 13,460
HeE Disposals - (4,324) (1,208) - (5,532)
E-E-ZF At 31 March 2020

=A=t—"H 102,698 171,326 15,877 244 290,145
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AR FMIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

ME - RERSEM@E PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

A
TR B BAR
BEM L) %E RE

Land Equipment,
and Computer  Furniture Motor
Buildings Equipment and Fittings Vehicles

E-T-TE At April 2020

mAE—H 102,698 171,326 15,877 244 290,145
FRER Charge for the year 3,850 9,214 3,741 - 16,805
HE Disposals - (26,370) (407) - (26,777)
E-E--& At 31 March 2021

=A=1+—-H 106,548 154,170 19,211 244 280,173

REFE Net book value
E-E-—-F At 31 March 2021

Z=B=+-H 243,452 36,685 11,712 - 291,849
EZZ-Z% At 31 March 2020

=A=+—H 247,302 26,713 9,711 - 283,726

HE LEASES
(a) EREEE Right-of-use assets
EEY
Buildings
2021 2020
2% Cost
£ F 7)) At beginning of year 40,421 40,421
FHHEESH Expiry of lease contracts (7,013) -
FEF# At end of year 33,408 40,421
25 E Accumulated depreciation
EF 7] At beginning of year 8,050 _
FAER Charge for the year 7,049 8,050
FHEESL Expiry of lease contracts (7,013) -
EFR At end of year 8,086 8,050
R E R E Net book value
FEF 4K At end of year 25,322 32,371
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BB R EMIFE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9. HE W LEASES (continued)
(b) HEEE Lease liabilities

R EN Current 3,638 6,603

FERE Non-current 22,139 26,142

mEE Total 25,777 32,745

TRETHERENES BRRASMIRSE

The table below shows changes in lease liabilities, including both cash and non-cash

changes.
2021 AOPA)
£ F 7)) At beginning of year 32,745 40,609
RKEMERSREN Changes from financing
BE) cash flows:
HEHKIE Lease payments (7,422) (8,436)
RS EH : Non-cash changes:
HEERENNEXHE Interest expense on
lease liabilities 454 572
EER At end of year 25,777 32,745

HERENHBREOHRIENT - FRAEHRREASNREANESZREIL ¢

The remaining contractual maturities of lease liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows, are shown below:

2021 PAOYAQ

—FE R Within one year 4,015 7,057
—FREMFA After one year but within

two years 4,380 4,380
MERERFA After two years but within

five years 13,140 13,140
hFi& After five years 5,534 9,914
meE Total 27,069 34,491
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AR FMIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9. HE W LEASES (continued)
(c) REZHEKERTAERE Expense items in relation to leases
HEERMXXHIER recognised in the statement of

comprehensive income

2021 2020

MEaENNEXH Interest expense on
lease liabilities 454 572
(d) BECRESRHETE Total cash outflow for leases
MERKIA Lease payments 7,422 8,436
10.BEEE INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BRI ER

Computer software

licences and system
development costs

2021 2020

59N Cost

£ F ) At beginning of year 238,010 211,393

NE Additions 40,499 26,617

HeE Disposals (26,976) -

EF# At end of year 251,533 238,010
Rt #E Accumulated amortisation

£ F ) At beginning of year 205,322 198,181

FRNEH Charge for the year 12,772 7,141

HeE Disposals (26,976) -

T F 42 At end of year 191,118 205,322
R E FE Net book value

TEF R At end of year 60,415 32,688
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BB R EMIFE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1M IEESER PLACEMENT WITH THE EXCHANGE
FUND

INERESHFRERS821TRAETL(ZT-FF : 69588 L)  HF66EET(ZF-F
F:56FBT)RAERI6I7EBT(ZZT_ZTF : 1.358FET) RWEHEAKRERKIE
BEHME - TRARPRF(AFREELS) PHATRERES -

The balance of the placement with the Exchange Fund amounted to HK$821.7 million
(2020: HK$695.8 million), being the principal sums of HK$660 million (2020: HK$560 million)
and interest paid but not yet withdrawn at the reporting date of HK$161.7 million
(2020: HK$135.8 million). The term of the placement is six years from the date of
placement, during which the amount of principal sums cannot be withdrawn.

INEESTFRANNEBZEF1AEEFNEEERAE - ZEXBINEE SR EHABEFNT
HFEEHRELDTR  S3FHRMAESFEL—EAFENFEHFEREE > LA0% A TR @ WA
EReE —E-—FEEBREEFL4TI%  — T _ZEFEFF37% -

Interest on the placement is payable at a fixed rate determined every January. The rate is
the average annual investment return of the Exchange Fund’s Investment Portfolio for the
past six years or the average annual yield of three-year Government Bonds for the previous
year subject to a minimum of zero percent, whichever is the higher. The interest rate has
been fixed at 4.7% per annum for the year 2021 and at 3.7% per annum for the
year 2020.

12.FENES R E/EWEE TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2021 PAOYAC

JE IR 3R Trade receivables 14,905 10,847
FEETFIE - Accrued interest from:
—RITIER —bank deposits 1,747 5,931
—INEE S TFRK —placement with the
Exchange Fund 9,522 6,401
BT A Prepayments 2,631 2,951
Ze Deposits 7 7
HmE Total 28,812 26,137
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AR FMIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

13.BEFHNENER CONTRACT BALANCES WITH
CUSTOMERS
(a) EWFIEMENEE Receivables and contract assets

(b)

s AWNEMATSRENRE NS - RS B &Y EWRIA GRS M 711280 U IR
e ENRHTEBEALTHRS - RS B HFE WA & 87 BN &R B 75 R0 2R 7 19 FE W
FEALIRR - MESWREEMRREMBRBNENEE - EXREMRSE - AXE
FelgRGER  HLESIWREEMAEKFIBAXSNEE -

For services provided to customers with service fees charged monthly, the balance
of receivables at the reporting date is presented as trade receivables in note 12. For
services provided to related parties, the balance of receivables at the reporting date is
presented as amounts due from related parties in the statement of financial position.
The Fund does not have any contract assets arising from these two categories of
services. For other services, since customers pay the service fees in advance, the Fund
does not have any receivables or contract assets.

EHEE Contract liabilities

A HBRBEFHAMNERRATFERRBHEL  SRPBINKF LELERAR
izl iy U

The Fund’s obligations to provide services to customers for which the Fund has
received advance payments from the customers are presented as deferred revenue in
the statement of financial position, as analysed below:

EFE WA Deferred revenue 2021 2020
AR TS & Registration fees 10,592 7,498
BTFIRTREE e-Alert service fees 9,249 7,170
HiR#&E Other service fees 1,385 1,517
W Total 21,226 16,185
(AVE 3 Representing:

mEAaE Current liabilities 12,666 9,620
FERBEE Non-current liabilities 8,560 6,565
W Total 21,226 16,185
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BB R EMIFE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

13.BEZ F NS &R @) CONTRACT BALANCES WITH
CUSTOMERS (continued)
(b) &8 EE@® Contract liabilities (continued)

RGBSR ANBERDERSADEE RGBT (MO RBET)NENETNRSE
R - BT BRAEFIRTRBNETZEWASNRIFAERER /WA - MEAMIE
TEWARIEM FAEERBPA - REEATFPAAONRERAARZER -

The balances of deferred revenue above represent the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are unsatisfied
(or partially unsatisfied) at the reporting date. For the deferred revenue from e-Alert
services, the Fund expects to recognise as revenue within eight years. For other
deferred revenue, the Fund expects to recognise as revenue within one year. No
consideration from contracts with customers is not included in the transaction price.

FRETWRAGEHRNERESHFHINWT

Significant changes in the balances of deferred revenue during the year are shown
below:

2021 PAOYAQ

A FE YR A58 Decrease due to recognition as
B SRIE R F N R revenue during the year that

A WA T A was included in the balances
of deferred revenue at
beginning of year (6,712) (5,688)

RERNWETFEZERM Increase due to advance

120 payments received during
the year 11,753 8,607
14.8FEE CUSTOMERS’ DEPOSITS

EREPRERHERBAIKIRNES
This represents deposits received from customers for services to be rendered.

15.EERFEE PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
AT EHS B RAIERABREL TREEBOGITaE(BME2.10)

This represents the estimated liability for employees’ annual leave for services rendered up
to the reporting date (see note 2.10).

112 FHETHWFMEZERES THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG



AR FMIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

16. £ EEEEXN
U RBFFE RS HRE -

TRADING FUND CAPITAL

This represents the Government’s investment in the Fund.

17.REZF RETAINED EARNINGS
2021 2020
£ F VR S BR Balance at beginning of year 1,258,609 1,271,376
FEREENZE Total comprehensive income for
the year 36,614 39,135
AT B3R Statutory return (17,741) (51,902)
EFERPEER Balance at end of year 1,277,482 1,258,609

FR - BARB(EEESKRIDETIRBEE T _EF A=t "B LFENBZROR
(RME7)EBEERRF—RKRA MZEBEBER T -~ FAZK(ZZT_FTF : #H=E
—E-NEF=ZA=TBL=AFENERLRNERN _T_TF=A%K) °

During the year, the Government directed the transfer of the target return (see note 7)
for the year ended 31 March 2020 into general revenue pursuant to the Trading Funds
Ordinance, and the transfer was completed in March 2021 (2020: the transfer of the target
returns for the three years ended 31 March 2019 was completed in March 2020).

18.BEREFRE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2021 2020
B MIRTTHE Cash and bank balances 10,684 17,996
RITIER Bank deposits 343,000 492,000
NEE Subtotal 353,684 509,996
SR FRAAHPR A31E A A £ Less: Bank deposits with original
BIERITIF K maturities over three
months (343,000) (492,000)
HENERBES Cash and cash equivalents 10,684 17,996
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A& R ZRHIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

19.BEALTHRS RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
FREEAMBHRRASFEEBENZ I FRERE TOEMEARZRHAMAT

Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial statements, the other material
related party transactions for the year are summarised as follows:

(a) ETRAEALRHNRBEE LT - B LB LM E L micsk - IBHE L
iEﬁ‘E.'Jﬁﬂ%ﬁéiﬁii  ARFRENREBIRE - BELRBAESHRNEKRASRT.043(E
BIL(ZZEZTF : 1.048887L) - ELREAEEMFTANKETFANZIWART ;

services provided to related parties included registration of land documents, search
of land registers and records, supply of copies of land records and reports on title,
and owners’ corporation services. The total revenue derived from these services
amounted to HK$104.3 million (2020: HK$104.8 million). This amount is included in
revenue from contracts with customers under note 4;

(b) BAEALTMESREMNRESEEBEENN AT - ARITH - UKBAHRSE - &
CHEBEERE T EMNERST R3,33088T(ZE_FF : 3,6908B87T) - B2 BEFTE
FEMIFESHEERAIET AR

services received from related parties included computer services, accommodation,
central administration and auditing. The total cost incurred on these services
amounted to HK$33.3 million (2020: HK$36.9 million). This amount is included in
operating costs under note 5; and

(0 RMEABATEBANYE RERBMEREREIR - GLEENEKREARS20EET
(ZZB-ZF : 750887T) °

acquisition of property, plant and equipment from related parties included fitting out
projects. The total cost of these assets amounted to HK$5.2 million (2020: HK$7.5 million).

ﬁFfﬁ%_/\i}i'rf/itﬂfﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬂﬁ%%D?ﬁﬁtﬁbAiHEWE’]H&%%B%?EH\’%%J FETE - BIRAS
}mﬁi\%’“mﬂ’]ﬁﬁk WEMAR—%  ERREHRGEEALTORS - AlREE 2RSS
ErE -

Charging for services rendered to or received from related parties was on the same basis,
that is, at the rates payable by the general public for services which were also available to
the public or on a full cost recovery basis for services which were available only to related
parties.
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AR FMIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

20. 2R E P B I FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(a) REBXK Investment policy

HEeUBERTOFTARREBEIIEEZSHERLRITFINCREE - REXNATER
RERAMKEBREBRREK BATRMEERMELNES - XFaEMBBEBRA -

The Fund maintains a conservative approach on investments in financial assets
including placement with the Exchange Fund and bank deposits. Investment decisions
are made according to the guidelines from the Secretary for Financial Services and the
Treasury, the Hong Kong Monetary Authority and other relevant regulations.

(b) EREMK Credit risk
ERERREERITIAN — T BTeEBETETMAESI RS —FRXUKEBELANRELR -

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

EeWERAAR  TEIORRINEESFR - BUROIR N E M EUKHRIE - BREEAL
MR - RITHERRIRITHER - BT ARRBEE  UREERAAENERRAR

The Fund’s credit risk is primarily attributable to placement with the Exchange Fund,
trade and other receivables, amounts due from related parties, bank deposits and
bank balances. The Fund has a credit policy in place and the exposure to these credit
risks is monitored on an ongoing basis.

SRENEERAAR  FMAEEHEIEOERNBENRERRT GELTMEERRSE
EEARR - BEEERBSN12EABRAEHERNEETE  ESTEMERNE
BYFEKX -

To minimise credit risks, all fixed deposits are placed with licensed banks in Hong
Kong. These financial assets are considered to have a low credit risk. The loss
allowances are measured at amounts equal to 12-month expected credit losses, which
are assessed to be immaterial by the Fund.

RITEFREBTEHNERER  UBEBENEFRBEENFR - 20T

The credit quality of bank deposits and bank balances, analysed by the ratings
designated by Moody’s or their equivalents, is shown below:

2021 2020

B ARTAR Credit rating:
AalEAa3 Aal to Aa3 9,588 17,298
ATZEA3 A1l to A3 109,100 437,100
BaalZ%Baa3 Baal to Baa3 234,000 55,000
HEE Total 352,688 509,398
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A& R ZRHIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

20. 2Rl E R B IR () FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
(b) 15 AR k(&) Credit risk (continued)
PAEMEMEEAMARERTE  BEESHFTHEHBHEREBEEEN  ALEEELE
B -

While other financial assets are subject to the impairment requirements, the Fund
has estimated that their expected credit losses are minimal and considers that no loss
allowance is required.

EREEESHNEREEMAAENRSEARRBARAENEIKREE -

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the financial assets of the Fund at the
reporting date is equal to their carrying amounts.

(c) RBEZ AR Liquidity risk
nBETRBREX -—ERBEUBTESRABHBNETNHER -

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities.

BEBEC(EEERKN)  E2EREHRSETE - a%%ﬁ%iﬁimﬁﬂﬁﬂ?ﬁé ARt
BRIRIRAE - ESHE **EIEHH%#?E FERFEHNRSBESETE @ MIREEERFIEHD
Eﬁi1n%1% J//Uﬁn/:l\ﬁ?_LHHm//lL%béf/i\%g EEEA%iE’]mL@Jﬁ Hﬁ/ﬂﬁﬁ ﬁyﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ

//|L@J§EEJ_L Eﬂi

Under the Trading Funds Ordinance, the Fund is responsible for its own cash
management, including short-term and long-term investment of cash surpluses,
subject to approval by the Financial Secretary. The Fund’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term. As the Fund has a strong liquidity position, it has a very low level of liquidity
risk.

(d) F=mE Interest rate risk

A = &= A?El‘ﬁ%ﬁ'ﬁ“éﬂﬁﬁ%@@ﬁ@ﬂ’]ﬂ 2o MERERAE—FDBRFENRER
&Eﬁé/ﬁg%ljg‘g@ PR

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates.

This can be further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest
rate risk.
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AR FMIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

20. < Bt /R e E w0 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

(d) R == k(&) Interest rate risk (continued)

(e)

RNEEFNERERESRTANRFEERATSANREFHMEBHNELR - ARESHIRTT
FRZEENRFTE > EMHHER LA - GEFERNAFERES K - A - AREL
TR EHEKAETR - THSEMNENEPH TS EHRMERESNANMEHEE -

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Since the Fund’s bank deposits
bear interest at fixed rates, their fair values will fall when market interest rates
increase. However, as they are all stated at amortised cost, changes in market interest
rates will not affect their carrying amounts and the Fund’s profit and reserves.

ReRENXARESBTANAKRSAESHATSMNXREHMEBHNER - ESE
AMHBEANRSRENXER  AAEFSANTIESHTAHITRIEERTA -

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Fund is not exposed
to material cash flow interest rate risk because it has no major financial instruments
bearing interest at a floating rate.

E¥ R Currency risk
E¥RRESBRIANATESARAKRREREGEAEXZ S MBI EME -

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

HEN—REBIXIRABTREM EMT &5 HEHEAR -

The Fund’s normal business transactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
therefore do not give rise to currency risk.

ERUETREBEMNIRE  ERNABTEITHE  EeNEEERER -

In respect of investments denominated in United States dollars, owing to the linked
exchange rate of the Hong Kong dollar to the United States dollar, the Fund has a very
low level of currency risk.

ERER  UXTR/AMINEREERFTASTET(ZT_ZF : 5T8T) - MK T
MEELMEERBEHNABTRAAAM -

At the reporting date, financial assets totalling HK$5,000 (2020: HK$5,000) were

denominated in United States dollars. The remaining financial assets and all financial
liabilities were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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A& R ZRHIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

20. 2Rl E R B IR () FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
(f) Htt S E g Other financial risk

ECARESFE—ABTHNIIEESERSE “mﬁpﬂm“@ﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬂﬂhoﬁ
—E-—F=ZA=Z1+—"H BR-E_EFR-_ZT-—FHERENRADS0EEL
(ZZE_ZTF :S0ARY)MEMEREZTE  FEEEFEEMNSHL4108E T
(ZZ =T :3508%87T) °

The Fund is exposed to financial risk arising from changes in the interest rate on the
placement with the Exchange Fund which is determined every January (note 11). It
was estimated that, as at 31 March 2021, a 50 basis point (2020: 50 basis point)
increase/decrease in the interest rates for 2020 and 2021, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease the profit for the year by HK$4.1 million
(2020: HK$3.5 million).

(9) 2¥1{E Fair values

EERTZEENERITANAFERREREBNMSREETE - WRBEZXEMHR
B BIABREHEMEETEAREBNTRBENGERFE -

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted
market prices at the reporting date. In the absence of such quoted market prices, fair
values are estimated using present value or other valuation techniques, using inputs
based on market conditions existing at the reporting date.

BT AGUNEERNTFERSHEETANSREM KRR KRATIEK -

All financial instruments are stated in the statement of financial position at amounts
equal to or not materially different from their fair values.
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21.

22.

AR FMIEE(4E) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BAREE CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
E-T-—F-A=+—0 B NRENBERENBENERRENT

As at 31 March 2021, the Fund had capital commitments, so far as not provided for in the
financial statements, as follows:

2021 2020

BEHERERED Authorised and contracted for 2,935 63,678
EHOEEREL Authorised but not yet

contracted for 283,315 274,798
#EE Total 286,250 338,476
EEAEREBE-SE——%F POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

=H=+—RBi&EEHk NEW STANDARDS AND
A MEET - &R B INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT

BT ae S e YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2021

EEAUBBREL A > BESAMASCEMZIRER T NRE - ZFER - #
EUAMNBEBEBE T~ FA=1T " BUEFERKREN  TORBEAV B RE T IEAK
o

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number
of amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for the
year ended 31 March 2021 and which have not been early adopted in these financial
statements.

B2 FRZFER]  FENKZEEERARKAAREFSEENRZEETIE - £50ER
RRMZEFER]  MERRREIARAHUBRREEATE -

The Fund is in the process of making an assessment of the expected impact of these
amendments, new standards and interpretations in the period of initial application. So far
it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
financial statements.
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	The measurement basis used in the preparation of these financial statements is historical cost.
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	編製符合香港財務報告準則的財務報表需要管理層作出判斷、估計及假設。該等判斷、估計及假設會影響會計政策的實施，以及資產與負債和收入與支出的呈報款額。該等估計及相關的假設，均按以往經驗及其他在有關情況下被認為合適的因素而制訂。倘若沒有其他現成數據可供參考，則會採用該等估計及假設作為判斷有關資產及負債的帳面值的基準。估計結果或會與實際價值有所不同。
	The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.  The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities tha
	該等估計及其所依據的假設會作持續檢討。如修訂會計估計只影響修訂期，有關修訂會在該修訂期內確認；如修訂影響本會計期及未來的會計期，則會在修訂期及未來的會計期內確認。
	The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
	基金在實施會計政策方面並不涉及任何關鍵的會計判斷。無論對未來作出的假設，或在報告日估計過程中所存在的不明朗因素，皆不足以構成重大風險，導致資產和負債的帳面金額在來年大幅修訂。
	There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the application of the Fund’s accounting policies.  There are also no key assumptions concerning the future, or other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next year.
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	Initial recognition and measurement
	基金的金融資產包括外匯基金存款、應收帳款及其他應收款項、應收關連人士帳款、銀行存款，以及現金及銀行結餘。
	The Fund’s financial assets comprise placement with the Exchange Fund, trade and other receivables, amounts due from related parties, bank deposits, and cash and bank balances.
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	基金的金融負債包括客戶按金、應付帳款及其他應付款項、應付關連人士帳款、租賃負債，以及僱員福利撥備。
	The Fund’s financial liabilities comprise customers’ deposits, trade and other payables, amounts due to related parties, lease liabilities and provision for employee benefits.
	基金在成為有關金融工具的合約其中一方之日確認有關金融資產及金融負債。於初始確認時，金融資產及金融負債按公平值計量，再加上或減去因收購該等金融資產或發行該等金融負債而直接引致的交易成本。
	The Fund recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.  At initial recognition, financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value plus or minus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets or the issue of the financial liabilities.
	(b) 分類及其後計量
	Classification and subsequent measurement
	基金將其所有金融資產分類為其後以實際利率法按攤銷成本值計量，因為有關金融資產以收取合約現金流為目的的業務模式而持有，且合約現金流僅為所支付的本金及利息。金融資產的虧損準備根據附註2.3(d)所述的預期信用虧損模型計量。
	The Fund classifies all financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, on the basis that they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold them for collection of contractual cash flows and the contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.  The measurement of loss allowances for financial assets is based on the expected credit loss model as described in note 2.3(d).
	2. 主要會計政策（續）
	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING  POLICIES (continued)
	2.3 金融資產及金融負債（續）
	Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
	(b) 分類及其後計量（續）
	Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
	實際利率法是計算金融資產或金融負債的攤銷成本值，以及攤分及確認有關期間的利息收入或支出的方法。實際利率是指可將該金融資產或金融負債在有效期間內的預計現金收支，折現成該金融資產的帳面總值或該金融負債的攤銷成本值所適用的貼現率。基金在計算實際利率時，會考慮該金融工具的所有合約條款以估計現金流量，但不會計及預期信用虧損。有關計算包括與實際利率相關的所有收取自或支付予合約各方的費用、交易成本及所有其他溢價或折讓。
	The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating and recognising the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.  The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of the financial liability.  When 
	基金將其所有金融負債分類為其後以實際利率法按攤銷成本值計量。
	The Fund classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
	基金僅在管理某金融資產的業務模式出現變動時，才將有關資產重新分類。金融負債不作重新分類。
	The Fund reclassifies a financial asset when and only when it changes its business model for managing the asset.  A financial liability is not reclassified.
	(c) 註銷確認
	Derecognition
	當從金融資產收取現金流量的合約權利屆滿時，或該金融資產連同擁有權的絕大部分風險及回報已轉讓時，該金融資產會被註銷確認。
	A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or where the financial asset together with substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.
	2. 主要會計政策（續）
	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING  POLICIES (continued)
	2.3 金融資產及金融負債（續）
	Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
	(c) 註銷確認（續）
	Derecognition (continued)
	當合約指明的債務被解除或取消，或到期時，該金融負債會被註銷確認。
	A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled, or when it expires.
	(d) 金融資產減值
	Impairment of financial assets
	基金就按攤銷成本值計量的金融資產（應收帳款除外）採用由3個階段組成的方法計量預期信用虧損及確認相應的虧損準備及減值虧損或回撥，預期信用虧損的計量基礎取決於自初始確認以來的信用風險變化：
	The Fund applies a three-stage approach to measure expected credit losses on financial assets (other than trade receivables) measured at amortised cost and to recognise the corresponding loss allowances and impairment losses or reversals, with the change in credit risk since initial recognition determining the measurement bases for expected credit losses:
	第1階段：12個月預期信用虧損
	Stage 1: 12-month expected credit losses
	若自初始確認以來，金融工具的信用風險並無大幅增加，全期預期信用虧損中反映在報告日後12個月內可能發生的違約事件引致的預期信用虧損的部分予以確認。
	For financial instruments for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the portion of the lifetime expected credit losses that represent the expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date are recognised.
	第2階段：全期預期信用虧損－非信用減值
	Stage 2: Lifetime expected credit losses－not credit impaired
	若自初始確認以來，金融工具的信用風險大幅增加，但並非信用減值，全期預期信用虧損（反映在金融工具的預期有效期內所有可能出現的違約事件引致的預期信用虧損）予以確認。
	For financial instruments for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not credit impaired, lifetime expected credit losses representing the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial instruments are recognised.
	2. 主要會計政策（續）
	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING  POLICIES (continued)
	2.3 金融資產及金融負債（續）
	Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
	(d) 金融資產減值（續）
	Impairment of financial assets (continued)
	第3階段：全期預期信用虧損－信用減值
	Stage 3: Lifetime expected credit losses－credit impaired
	若金融工具已視作信用減值，會確認全期預期信用虧損，利息收入則應用實際利率計入攤銷成本值而非帳面值總額計算。
	For financial instruments that have become credit impaired, lifetime expected credit losses are recognised and interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost rather than the gross carrying amount.
	應收帳款的虧損準備一直按相等於全期預期信用虧損的金額計量。
	Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
	如何釐定信用風險大幅 增加
	Determining significant increases in credit risk
	在每個報告日，基金藉比較金融工具於報告日及於初始確認日期在餘下的預期有效期內出現違約的風險，以評估金融工具的信用風險有否大幅增加。有關評估會考慮數量及質量歷史資料，以及具前瞻性的資料。若發生一項或多於一項對某金融資產的估計未來現金流量有不利影響的事件，該金融資產會被評定為信用減值。
	At each reporting date, the Fund assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk for financial instruments since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the remaining expected life as at the reporting date with that as at the date of initial recognition.  The assessment considers quantitative and qualitative historical information as well as forward-looking information.  A financial asset is assessed to be credit impaired when one or more events that have a 
	2. 主要會計政策（續）
	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING  POLICIES (continued)
	2.3 金融資產及金融負債（續）
	Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
	(d) 金融資產減值（續）
	Impairment of financial assets (continued)
	如何釐定信用風險大幅 增加（續）
	Determining significant increases in credit risk (continued)
	基金在個別或綜合基準上評估自初始確認以來信用風險有否大幅增加。就綜合評估而言，金融工具按共同信用風險特質的基準歸類，並考慮投資類別、信用風險評級及其他相關因素。
	The Fund assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition on an individual or collective basis.  For collective assessment, financial instruments are grouped on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics, taking into account investment type, credit risk ratings and other relevant factors.
	外部信用評級為投資級別的銀行存款被視為屬低信用風險。其他金融工具若其違約風險低，且交易對手或借款人具備雄厚實力在短期內履行其合約現金流量責任，會被視為屬低信用風險。此等金融工具的信用風險會被評定為自初始確認以來並無大幅增加。
	Placements with banks with an external credit rating of investment grade are considered to have a low credit risk.  Other financial instruments are considered to have a low credit risk if they have a low risk of default and the counterparty or borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.  The credit risk on these financial instruments is assessed as not having increased significantly since initial recognition.
	若金融資產無法收回，該金融資產會與相關虧損準備撇銷。該等資產在完成所有必要程序及釐定虧損金額後撇銷。其後收回先前被撇銷的金額會在全面收益表內確認。
	When a financial asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the related loss allowance.  Such assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.  Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
	2. 主要會計政策（續）
	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING  POLICIES (continued)
	2.3 金融資產及金融負債（續）
	Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
	(d) 金融資產減值（續）
	Impairment of financial assets (continued)
	計量預期信用虧損
	Measurement of expected credit losses
	金融工具的預期信用虧損是對該金融工具在預期有效期內的公平及經概率加權估計的信用虧損（即所有短缺現金的現值）。短缺現金為按照合約應付予基金的現金流量與基金預期會收到的現金流量兩者間的差距。若金融資產在報告日視作信用減值，基金根據該資產的帳面值總額與以折現方式按該資產的原訂實際利率計算的估計未來現金流量的現值兩者間的差距計量預期信用虧損。
	Expected credit losses of a financial instrument are an unbiased and probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the financial instrument.  A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows due to the Fund in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Fund expects to receive.  For a financial asset that is credit impaired at the reporting date, the Fund measures the expected credit losses as the difference bet
	2.4 物業、設備及器材
	Property, plant and equipment
	於一九九三年八月一日撥歸基金的物業、設備及器材，最初的成本值是按立法會所通過設立基金的決議案中所列的估值入帳。自一九九三年八月一日起購置的物業、設備及器材均按購入價入帳。
	Property, plant and equipment appropriated to the Fund on 1 August 1993 were measured initially at deemed cost equal to the value contained in the Legislative Council Resolution for the setting up of the Fund.  Property, plant and equipment acquired since 1 August 1993 are capitalised at their costs of acquisition.
	以下物業、設備及器材以成本值扣除累計折舊及任何減值虧損列帳（附註2.7）：－ 於一九九三年八月一日撥歸基金自用的建築物；以及－ 設備及器材，包括電腦器材、汽車、傢具及裝置，以及其他器材。
	The following property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses (note 2.7):－ buildings held for own use appropriated to the Fund on 1 August 1993; and－ plant and equipment, including computer equipment, motor vehicles, furniture and fittings, and other equipment.
	2. 主要會計政策（續）
	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING  POLICIES (continued)
	2.4 物業、設備及器材（續）
	Property, plant and equipment (continued)
	折舊是按照物業、設備及器材的估計可使用年期，以直線法攤銷扣除估計剩餘值後的成本值。有關的估計可使用年期如下：－ 建築物 30年－ 電腦器材 5–10年－ 器材、傢具及裝置 5年－ 汽車 5年
	Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:－ Buildings 30 years－ Computer equipment 5–10 years－ Equipment, furniture and fittings 5 years－ Motor vehicles 5 years
	於一九九三年八月一日撥歸基金的建築物所在的土地視為非折舊資產。
	The land on which the Fund’s buildings are situated as appropriated to the Fund on 1 August 1993 is regarded as a non-depreciating asset.
	出售物業、設備及器材的損益以出售所得淨額與資產的帳面值之間的差額來決定，並在出售日於全面收益表內確認。
	Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the date of disposal.
	2.5 租賃
	Leases
	租賃會於其生效日在財務狀況表內確認為使用權資產及相應的租賃負債，惟可變租賃款項、涉及租賃期為12個月或以下的短期租賃及低價值資產租賃的相關款項會在租賃期內以直線法計入全面收益表。
	A lease is recognised in the statement of financial position as a right-of-use asset with a corresponding lease liability at the lease commencement date, except that variable lease payments and payments associated with short-term leases having a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets are charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
	2. 主要會計政策（續）
	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING  POLICIES (continued)
	2.5 租賃（續）
	Leases (continued)
	使用權資產會按成本值扣除累計折舊及減值虧損計量（附註2.7）。該使用權資產按租賃期及資產的估計可使用年期兩者中的較短者以直線法折舊。
	A right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (note 2.7).  The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the asset’s estimated useful life.
	租賃負債按在租賃期應支付的租賃款項的現值計量，並以租賃隱含利率折現，或如該利率未能確定，則以基金的遞增借款利率折現。租賃負債其後按租賃負債計提的利息與所支付的租賃款項作調整。
	The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Fund’s incremental borrowing rate.  The lease liability is subsequently adjusted by the effect of the interest on and the settlement of the lease liability.
	若基金改變其對會否行使延長租賃或終止租賃選擇權的評估，租賃負債將重新計量。在重新計量租賃負債時，有關使用權資產的帳面值會作出相應調整，或若使用權資產的帳面值已減少至零，則有關調整會列入全面收益表。
	The lease liability is remeasured if the Fund changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or termination option.  When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the statement of comprehensive income if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
	2.6 無形資產
	Intangible assets
	無形資產包括購入的電腦軟件牌照及已資本化的電腦軟件程式開發成本值。若電腦軟件程式在技術上可行，而基金有足夠資源及有意完成開發工作，有關的開發費用會被資本化。資本化費用包括直接工資及材料費用。無形資產按成本值扣除累計攤銷及任何減值虧損列帳（附註2.7）。
	Intangible assets include acquired computer software licences and capitalised development costs of computer software programmes.  Expenditure on development of computer software programmes is capitalised if the programmes are technically feasible and the Fund has sufficient resources and the intention to complete development.  The expenditure capitalised includes direct labour and cost of materials.  Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses (note 2.7).
	2. 主要會計政策（續）
	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING  POLICIES (continued)
	2.6 無形資產（續）
	Intangible assets (continued)
	無形資產的攤銷按估計可使用年期（5至10年）以直線法列入全面收益表。
	Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.
	2.7 非金融資產的減值
	Impairment of non-financial assets
	非金融資產（包括物業、設備及器材、使用權資產和無形資產）的帳面值在每個報告日評估，以確定有否出現減值跡象。若有減值跡象而資產的帳面值高於其可收回數額時，則有關減值虧損會在全面收益表內確認。資產的可收回數額為其公平值減出售成本與使用值兩者中的較高者。
	The carrying amounts of non-financial assets, including property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to identify any indication of impairment.  If there is an indication of impairment, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.  The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
	2.8 等同現金
	Cash equivalents
	等同現金指短期及流通性高的投資，該等項目在購入時距期滿日不超過3個月，並隨時可轉換為已知數額的現金，而其價值變動的風險不大。
	Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at the date of acquisition.
	2.9 遞延收入
	Deferred revenue
	在基金移轉服務予客戶前，若客戶支付代價，或基金具有無條件限制的代價收款權，基金會將其合約負債確認為遞延收入。基金在移轉服務以履行其履約責任時，會註銷確認遞延收入，並就收入加以確認。
	If a customer pays consideration, or the Fund has an unconditional right to consideration, before the Fund transfers a service to the customer, the Fund recognises its contract liability as deferred revenue.  The Fund derecognises the deferred revenue and recognises revenue when the Fund transfers the service and, therefore, satisfies its performance obligation.
	2. 主要會計政策（續）
	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING  POLICIES (continued)
	2.10 僱員福利
	Employee benefits
	基金的僱員包括公務員及合約員工。薪金、約滿酬金及年假開支均在僱員提供有關服務所在年度以應計基準確認入帳。就公務員而言，僱員附帶福利開支包括香港特別行政區政府（「政府」）給予僱員的退休金及房屋福利，均在僱員提供有關服務所在年度支銷。
	The employees of the Fund comprise civil servants and contract staff.  Salaries, staff gratuities and annual leave entitlements are accrued and recognised as expenditure in the year in which the associated services are rendered by the staff.  For civil servants, staff on-costs, including pensions and housing benefits provided to the staff by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“the Government”), are charged as expenditure in the year in which the associated services are rendered.
	就按可享退休金條款受聘的公務員的長俸負債已包括於支付予政府有關附帶福利開支中。就其他員工向強制性公積金計劃的供款於全面收益表內支銷。
	For civil servants employed on pensionable terms, their pension liabilities are discharged by reimbursement of the staff on-costs charged by the Government.  For other staff, contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged to the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.
	2.11 收入的確認
	Revenue recognition
	基金會在向客戶移轉所承諾的服務以履行其履約責任時，按基金預期就交換該項服務所應得代價的金額，確認客戶合約的收入。
	The Fund recognises revenue from contracts with customers when it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised service to a customer, at the amount of consideration to which the Fund expects to be entitled in exchange for the service.
	利息收入按實際利率法以應計方式確認。
	Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.
	2.12 外幣換算
	Foreign currency translation
	本年度外幣交易，按交易當日的匯率換算為港元。以非港幣計算的貨幣資產及負債，均按報告日的收巿匯率換算為港元。外匯換算產生的匯兌收益及虧損，會在全面收益表中確認。
	Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the spot exchange rates at the transaction dates.  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the closing exchange rate at the reporting date.  Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
	2. 主要會計政策（續）
	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING  POLICIES (continued)
	2.13 關連人士
	Related parties
	基金是根據《營運基金條例》設立，並屬政府轄下的一個獨立會計單位。年內，基金在日常業務中曾與各關連人士進行交易。這些關連人士包括政府各決策局及部門、其他營運基金，以及受政府所管制或政府對其有重大影響力的財政自主機構。
	The Fund is a separate accounting entity within the Government established under the Trading Funds Ordinance.  During the year, the Fund has entered into transactions with various related parties, including government bureaux and departments, other trading funds and financially autonomous bodies controlled or significantly influenced by the Government, in the ordinary course of its business.
	3. 會計政策改變
	CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
	香港會計師公會頒布了若干新增或經修訂的香港財務報告準則並於基金的本會計期首次生效。適用於本財務報表所呈報年度的會計政策，並未因這些發展而有任何改變。
	The HKICPA has issued certain new or revised HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of the Fund.  There have been no changes to the accounting policies applied in these financial statements for the years presented as a result of these developments.
	基金並沒有採納在本會計期尚未生效的任何新準則或詮釋（附註22）。
	The Fund has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (note 22).
	4. 來自客戶合約之收入
	REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
	2021 
	2020
	辦理文件註冊
	Registration of documents
	163,763
	176,950
	查冊
	Search
	94,523
	86,762
	提供副本
	Copying
	84,782
	78,932
	業權報告
	Reports on title
	51,063
	47,484
	電子提示服務
	e-Alert services
	31,258
	30,338
	業主立案法團服務
	Owners’ corporation services
	10,667
	15,464
	其他
	Others
	12,622
	16,399
	總額 
	Total 
	448,678 
	452,329
	4. 來自客戶合約之收入（續）
	REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (continued)
	基金在客戶合約方面的履約責任，主要涉及向客戶提供辦理文件註冊及查閱土地登記冊和有關土地紀錄的服務。客戶須就每項服務預繳固定金額的服務費，或選擇在基金開立帳戶，每月繳付服務費。基金是在提供服務的同時履行履約責任，並隨時間移轉按成本比例法確認收費。
	The Fund’s performance obligations in contracts with customers mainly involve providing services, for registration of documents and searches of the Land Register and related land records, to the customers.  A customer is required to pay a fixed amount of service fee for each service in advance, or opt to have service fees being charged monthly by opening an account with the Fund.  The Fund satisfies its performance obligation as the service is rendered and recognises the fee over time based on a cost-to-cos
	在向關連人士提供業主立案法團服務方面，基金是在提供服務的同時履行履約責任，並隨時間移轉按收回全部成本方式確認服務費。
	For owners’ corporation services provided to related parties, the Fund satisfies its performance obligation as the service is rendered and recognises a service fee over time on a full cost recovery basis.
	5. 運作成本
	OPERATING COSTS
	2021 
	2020
	員工費用
	Staff costs
	342,152
	341,223
	一般運作開支
	General operating expenses
	17,164
	17,999
	電腦服務開支
	Computer service charges
	30,937
	35,083
	租金及管理費
	Rental and management charges
	19,013
	20,076
	中央行政費用
	Central administrative overheads
	3,210
	5,555
	折舊及攤銷
	Depreciation and amortisation
	36,626
	28,651
	審計費用
	Audit fees 
	747
	712
	總額 
	Total 
	449,849
	449,299
	6. 其他收入
	OTHER INCOME
	2021
	2020
	利息：
	Interest from:
	－銀行存款
	－bank deposits
	8,827
	14,883
	－外匯基金存款
	－placement with the  Exchange Fund
	28,958
	21,176
	處置物業、設備及 器材收益
	Gain on disposal of property,  plant and equipment 
	–
	46
	總額 
	Total 
	37,785 
	36,105
	7. 固定資產回報率
	RATE OF RETURN ON FIXED ASSETS
	固定資產回報率是以總全面收益（不包括利息收入）除以固定資產平均淨值計算，並以百分比的方式表達。固定資產只包括物業、設備及器材和無形資產。預期基金可以達到由財政司司長釐定的每年固定資產目標回報率為5.9%（二零二零年：5.9%）。
	The rate of return on fixed assets is calculated as total comprehensive income (excluding interest income) divided by average net fixed assets, and expressed as a percentage.  Fixed assets include property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets only.  The Fund is expected to meet a target rate of return on fixed assets of 5.9% (2020: 5.9%) per year as determined by the Financial Secretary.
	8. 物業、設備及器材
	PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
	土地及建築物Land and Buildings 
	電腦器材Computer Equipment 
	器材、傢具及裝置Equipment, Furniture and Fittings 
	汽車Motor Vehicles 
	總額Total 
	成本
	Cost
	在二零一九年 四月一日
	At 1 April 2019
	350,000
	184,756
	18,996
	244
	553,996
	添置
	Additions
	–
	17,607
	7,800
	–
	25,407
	出售
	Disposals
	–
	(4,324)
	(1,208)
	–
	(5,532)
	在二零二零年 三月三十一日
	At 31 March 2020
	350,000
	198,039
	25,588
	244
	573,871
	在二零二零年 四月一日
	At 1 April 2020
	350,000
	198,039
	25,588
	244
	573,871
	添置
	Additions
	–
	19,208
	5,742
	–
	24,950
	出售
	Disposals
	–
	(26,392)
	(407)
	–
	(26,799)
	在二零二一年 三月三十一日
	At 31 March 2021
	350,000
	190,855
	30,923
	244
	572,022
	累計折舊
	Accumulated depreciation
	在二零一九年 四月一日
	At 1 April 2019
	98,848
	168,878
	14,247
	244
	282,217
	年內費用
	Charge for the year
	3,850
	6,772
	2,838
	–
	13,460
	出售
	Disposals
	–
	(4,324) 
	(1,208)
	–
	(5,532)
	在二零二零年 三月三十一日
	At 31 March 2020
	102,698
	171,326
	15,877
	244 
	290,145
	8. 物業、設備及器材（續）
	PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
	土地及建築物Land and Buildings 
	電腦器材Computer Equipment 
	器材、傢具及裝置Equipment, Furniture and Fittings 
	汽車Motor Vehicles 
	總額Total 
	在二零二零年 四月一日
	At 1 April 2020
	102,698
	171,326
	15,877
	244
	290,145
	年內費用
	Charge for the year
	3,850
	9,214
	3,741
	–
	16,805
	出售
	Disposals
	–
	(26,370)
	(407)
	–
	(26,777)
	在二零二一年 三月三十一日
	At 31 March 2021
	106,548
	154,170
	19,211
	244
	280,173
	帳面淨值
	Net book value
	在二零二一年 三月三十一日
	At 31 March 2021
	243,452
	36,685
	11,712
	–
	291,849
	在二零二零年 三月三十一日
	At 31 March 2020
	247,302
	26,713
	9,711
	–
	283,726
	9. 租賃
	LEASES
	(a) 使用權資產
	Right-of-use assets
	建築物Buildings
	2021 
	2020
	成本
	Cost
	在年初
	At beginning of year
	40,421
	40,421
	到期租賃合約
	Expiry of lease contracts
	(7,013)
	–
	在年終
	At end of year
	33,408
	40,421
	累計折舊
	Accumulated depreciation
	在年初
	At beginning of year
	8,050
	–
	年內費用
	Charge for the year
	7,049
	8,050
	到期租賃合約
	Expiry of lease contracts
	(7,013)
	–
	在年終
	At end of year
	8,086
	8,050
	帳面淨值
	Net book value
	在年終
	At end of year
	25,322
	32,371
	9. 租賃（續）
	LEASES (continued)
	(b) 租賃負債
	Lease liabilities
	2021
	2020
	流動
	Current
	3,638
	6,603
	非流動
	Non-current
	22,139
	26,142
	總額
	Total
	25,777
	32,745
	下表顯示租賃負債的變動，包括現金和非現金變動。
	The table below shows changes in lease liabilities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
	2021
	2020
	在年初
	At beginning of year
	32,745
	40,609
	來自融資現金流量的 變動：
	Changes from financing  cash flows:
	租賃款項
	Lease payments
	(7,422)
	(8,436)
	非現金變動：租賃負債的利息支出
	Non-cash changes:Interest expense on  lease liabilities
	454
	572
	在年終
	At end of year
	25,777
	32,745
	租賃負債的剩餘合約期限列載如下，有關資料是根據合約未貼現的現金流量列出：
	The remaining contractual maturities of lease liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows, are shown below:
	2021
	2020
	一年內
	Within one year
	4,015
	7,057
	一年後至兩年內
	After one year but within  two years
	4,380
	4,380
	兩年後至五年內
	After two years but within five years
	13,140
	13,140
	五年後
	After five years
	5,534
	9,914
	總額
	Total
	27,069
	34,491
	9. 租賃（續）
	LEASES (continued)
	(c) 於全面收益表內確認與 租賃有關的支出項目
	Expense items in relation to leases recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
	2021
	2020
	租賃負債的利息支出
	Interest expense on  lease liabilities
	454
	572
	(d) 租賃之現金流出總額
	Total cash outflow for leases
	2021
	2020
	租賃款項
	Lease payments 
	7,422
	8,436
	10. 無形資產
	INTANGIBLE ASSETS
	電腦軟件牌照及系統開發成本Computer software licences and system development costs
	2021
	2020
	成本
	Cost
	在年初
	At beginning of year
	238,010
	211,393
	添置
	Additions
	40,499
	26,617
	出售
	Disposals
	(26,976)
	–
	在年終
	At end of year
	251,533
	238,010
	累計攤銷
	Accumulated amortisation
	在年初
	At beginning of year
	205,322
	198,181
	年內費用
	Charge for the year
	12,772
	7,141
	出售
	Disposals
	(26,976)
	–
	在年終
	At end of year
	191,118
	205,322
	帳面淨值
	Net book value
	在年終
	At end of year
	60,415
	32,688
	11. 外匯基金存款
	PLACEMENT WITH THE EXCHANGE FUND
	外匯基金存款結餘為8.217億港元（二零二零年：6.958億港元），其中6.6億港元（二零二零年：5.6億港元）為本金及1.617億港元（二零二零年：1.358億港元）為報告日已入帳但尚未提取的利息。存款期為期六年（由存款日起計），期內不能提取本金。
	The balance of the placement with the Exchange Fund amounted to HK$821.7 million (2020: HK$695.8 million), being the principal sums of HK$660 million (2020: HK$560 million) and interest paid but not yet withdrawn at the reporting date of HK$161.7 million  (2020: HK$135.8 million).  The term of the placement is six years from the date of placement, during which the amount of principal sums cannot be withdrawn.
	外匯基金存款利息按每年1月釐定的固定息率計算。該息率是外匯基金投資組合過去6年的平均年度投資回報，或3年期政府債券在上一個年度的平均年度收益率，以0%為下限，兩者取其較高者。二零二一年固定息率為每年4.7%，二零二零年為每年3.7%。
	Interest on the placement is payable at a fixed rate determined every January.  The rate is  the average annual investment return of the Exchange Fund’s Investment Portfolio for the  past six years or the average annual yield of three-year Government Bonds for the previous  year subject to a minimum of zero percent, whichever is the higher.  The interest rate has  been fixed at 4.7% per annum for the year 2021 and at 3.7% per annum for the  year 2020.
	12. 應收帳款及其他應收款項
	TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
	2021
	2020
	應收帳款
	Trade receivables
	14,905
	10,847
	應計利息：
	Accrued interest from:
	－銀行存款
	－bank deposits
	1,747
	5,931
	－外匯基金存款
	－placement with the  Exchange Fund
	9,522
	6,401
	預付款項
	Prepayments
	2,631
	2,951
	按金
	Deposits
	7
	7
	總額
	Total
	28,812
	26,137
	13. 與客戶的合約結餘
	CONTRACT BALANCES WITH CUSTOMERS
	(a) 應收款項和合約資產
	Receivables and contract assets
	就每月收費而向客戶提供的服務而言，在報告日的應收款項結餘即載於附註12的應收帳款。至於提供予關連人士的服務，在報告日的應收款項結餘即載於財務狀況表中的應收關連人士帳款。而基金並沒有任何源於這兩類服務的合約資產。至於其他服務，由於客戶會預繳服務費用，因此基金並沒有任何應收款項或合約資產。
	For services provided to customers with service fees charged monthly, the balance of receivables at the reporting date is presented as trade receivables in note 12.  For services provided to related parties, the balance of receivables at the reporting date is presented as amounts due from related parties in the statement of financial position.  The Fund does not have any contract assets arising from these two categories of services.  For other services, since customers pay the service fees in advance, the F
	(b) 合約負債
	Contract liabilities
	基金在收取客戶預繳的費用後向客戶提供服務的責任，會於財務狀況表中以遞延收入的形式列出，分析如下：
	The Fund’s obligations to provide services to customers for which the Fund has received advance payments from the customers are presented as deferred revenue in the statement of financial position, as analysed below:
	遞延收入
	 Deferred revenue
	2021
	2020
	註冊服務費
	Registration fees
	10,592
	7,498
	電子提示服務費
	e-Alert service fees
	9,249
	7,170
	其他服務費
	Other service fees 
	1,385 
	1,517
	總額
	Total 
	21,226
	16,185
	代表：
	Representing:
	流動負債
	Current liabilities
	12,666
	9,620
	非流動負債 
	Non-current liabilities 
	8,560
	6,565
	總額
	Total 
	21,226
	16,185
	13. 與客戶的合約結餘（續）
	CONTRACT BALANCES WITH CUSTOMERS (continued)
	(b) 合約負債（續）
	Contract liabilities (continued)
	上述遞延收入的結餘乃在報告日分攤至未有履行（或部分未有履行）的履約責任的交易價格總額。基金預料，有關電子提示服務的遞延收入會於8年內獲確認為收入，而其他遞延收入則會於1年內獲確認為收入。沒有任何客戶合約的代價未納入交易價格。
	The balances of deferred revenue above represent the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are unsatisfied  (or partially unsatisfied) at the reporting date.  For the deferred revenue from e-Alert services, the Fund expects to recognise as revenue within eight years.  For other deferred revenue, the Fund expects to recognise as revenue within one year.  No consideration from contracts with customers is not included in the transaction price.
	年內遞延收入結餘的重大變動開列如下：
	Significant changes in the balances of deferred revenue during the year are shown below:
	2021
	2020
	因年初遞延收入結餘中 的款項於年內獲確認 為收入而減少
	Decrease due to recognition as revenue during the year that was included in the balances of deferred revenue at beginning of year
	(6,712)
	(5,688)
	因年內收取預繳費用而 增加
	Increase due to advance payments received during  the year 
	11,753
	8,607
	14. 客戶按金
	CUSTOMERS’ DEPOSITS
	指向客戶提供服務前收取的按金。
	This represents deposits received from customers for services to be rendered.
	15. 僱員福利撥備
	PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
	此為在計至報告日就所提供的服務給予僱員年假的估計負債（見附註2.10）。
	This represents the estimated liability for employees’ annual leave for services rendered up to the reporting date (see note 2.10).
	16. 營運基金資本
	TRADING FUND CAPITAL
	此為政府對基金的投資。
	This represents the Government’s investment in the Fund.
	17. 保留盈利
	RETAINED EARNINGS
	2021
	2020
	在年初的結餘
	Balance at beginning of year
	1,258,609
	1,271,376
	年度總全面收益
	Total comprehensive income for the year
	36,614
	39,135
	法定回報
	Statutory return
	(17,741)
	(51,902)
	在年終的結餘
	Balance at end of year 
	1,277,482
	1,258,609
	年內，政府根據《營運基金條例》指示將截至二零二零年三月三十一日止年度的目標回報 （見附註7）轉撥至政府一般收入，而該轉撥於二零二一年三月完成（二零二零年：截至 二零一九年三月三十一日止三個年度的目標回報的轉撥於二零二零年三月完成）。
	During the year, the Government directed the transfer of the target return (see note 7) for the year ended 31 March 2020 into general revenue pursuant to the Trading Funds Ordinance, and the transfer was completed in March 2021 (2020: the transfer of the target returns for the three years ended 31 March 2019 was completed in March 2020).
	18. 現金及等同現金
	CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
	2021
	2020
	現金及銀行結餘
	Cash and bank balances
	10,684
	17,996
	銀行存款
	Bank deposits
	343,000
	492,000
	小計
	Subtotal
	353,684
	509,996
	減：原有期限為3個月以上的銀行存款
	Less: Bank deposits with original maturities over three months
	(343,000)
	(492,000)
	現金及等同現金
	Cash and cash equivalents 
	10,684
	17,996
	19. 關連人士的交易
	RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
	除已在本財務報表內另作披露的交易外，年內與關連人士進行的其他重大交易摘述如下：
	Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial statements, the other material related party transactions for the year are summarised as follows:
	(a) 基金向關連人士提供的服務包括土地文件註冊、查閱土地登記冊及土地紀錄、提供土地紀錄副本和業權報告，以及業主立案法團服務。這些服務為基金帶來的總收入為1.043億港元（二零二零年：1.048億港元）。這金額已計算在附註4的來自客戶合約之收入項下；
	services provided to related parties included registration of land documents, search of land registers and records, supply of copies of land records and reports on title, and owners’ corporation services.  The total revenue derived from these services amounted to HK$104.3 million (2020: HK$104.8 million).  This amount is included in revenue from contracts with customers under note 4;
	(b) 關連人士向基金提供的服務包括有關電腦、辦公地方、中央行政，以及審計的服務。基金在這些服務方面的總開支為3,330萬港元（二零二零年：3,690萬港元）。這金額已計算在附註5的運作成本項下；以及
	services received from related parties included computer services, accommodation, central administration and auditing.  The total cost incurred on these services amounted to HK$33.3 million (2020: HK$36.9 million).  This amount is included in operating costs under note 5; and
	(c) 向關連人士購入的物業、設備及器材包括裝置工程。這些資產的總成本為520萬港元 （二零二零年：750萬港元）。
	acquisition of property, plant and equipment from related parties included fitting out projects.  The total cost of these assets amounted to HK$5.2 million (2020: HK$7.5 million).
	基金向關連人士提供服務的收費和接受這些人士服務的收費都是按照劃一標準計算，即同時提供給公眾的服務，收費和公眾一樣；至於只提供給關連人士的服務，則按收回全部成本方式計算。
	Charging for services rendered to or received from related parties was on the same basis, that is, at the rates payable by the general public for services which were also available to the public or on a full cost recovery basis for services which were available only to related parties.
	20. 金融風險管理
	FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
	(a) 投資政策
	Investment policy
	基金以審慎保守的方式來投資包括外匯基金存款及銀行存款的金融資產。投資的決定是按照由財經事務及庫務局局長、香港金融管理局所發出的指引，並符合其他有關規例。
	The Fund maintains a conservative approach on investments in financial assets including placement with the Exchange Fund and bank deposits.  Investment decisions are made according to the guidelines from the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury, the Hong Kong Monetary Authority and other relevant regulations.
	(b) 信用風險
	Credit risk
	信用風險指金融工具的一方將不能履行責任而且會引致另一方蒙受財務損失的風險。
	Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.
	基金的信用風險，主要取決於外匯基金存款、應收帳款及其他應收款項、應收關連人士帳款、銀行存款及銀行結餘。基金訂有風險政策，並持續監察須承擔的信用風險。
	The Fund’s credit risk is primarily attributable to placement with the Exchange Fund, trade and other receivables, amounts due from related parties, bank deposits and bank balances.  The Fund has a credit policy in place and the exposure to these credit risks is monitored on an ongoing basis.
	為盡量減低信用風險，所有定期存款均存放於香港的持牌銀行。這些金融資產被視為屬低信用風險。虧損準備按相等於12個月預期信用虧損的數額計量，基金評定所涉及的虧損並不重大。
	To minimise credit risks, all fixed deposits are placed with licensed banks in HongKong.  These financial assets are considered to have a low credit risk.  The lossallowances are measured at amounts equal to 12-month expected credit losses, which are assessed to be immaterial by the Fund.
	銀行存款及銀行結餘的信用質素，以穆廸或其等同指定的評級，分析如下：
	The credit quality of bank deposits and bank balances, analysed by the ratingsdesignated by Moody’s or their equivalents, is shown below:
	2021
	2020
	信用評級：
	Credit rating:
	Aa1至Aa3
	Aa1 to Aa3
	9,588
	17,298
	A1至A3
	A1 to A3
	109,100
	437,100
	Baa1至Baa3
	Baa1 to Baa3
	234,000
	55,000
	總額 
	Total
	352,688
	509,398
	20. 金融風險管理（續）
	FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
	(b) 信用風險（續）
	Credit risk (continued)
	雖然其他金融資產須符合減值規定，但基金估計其預期信用虧損輕微，因此無須作出虧損準備。
	While other financial assets are subject to the impairment requirements, the Fund has estimated that their expected credit losses are minimal and considers that no loss allowance is required.
	在報告日基金的金融資產所須承擔的最高信用風險數額相當於其帳面值。
	The maximum exposure to credit risk of the financial assets of the Fund at the reporting date is equal to their carrying amounts.
	(c) 流動資金風險
	Liquidity risk
	流動資金風險指某一實體將難以履行與金融負債相關的責任的風險。
	Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.
	根據《營運基金條例》，基金須負責其現金管理，包括盈餘現金的長短期投資，惟須獲財政司司長批准。基金的政策是定期監察即時及預期的流動資金需要，確保能維持足夠的現金儲備，以符合長短期的流動資金需要。由於基金的流動資金狀況穩健，故其面對的流動資金風險甚低。
	Under the Trading Funds Ordinance, the Fund is responsible for its own cash management, including short-term and long-term investment of cash surpluses, subject to approval by the Financial Secretary.  The Fund’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.  As the Fund has a strong liquidity position, it has a very low level of liquidity risk.
	(d) 利率風險
	Interest rate risk
	利率風險指因市場利率變動而引致虧損的風險。利率風險可進一步分為公平值利率風險及現金流量利率風險。
	Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates.  This can be further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk.
	20. 金融風險管理（續）
	FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
	(d) 利率風險（續）
	Interest rate risk (continued)
	公平值利率風險指金融工具的公平值會因市場利率變動而波動的風險。由於基金的銀行存款按固定利率計息，當市場利率上升，這些存款的公平值便會下跌。然而，由於這些存款均按攤銷成本值列帳，市場利率的變動不會影響其帳面值及基金的盈利和儲備。
	Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.  Since the Fund’s bank deposits bear interest at fixed rates, their fair values will fall when market interest rates increase.  However, as they are all stated at amortised cost, changes in market interest rates will not affect their carrying amounts and the Fund’s profit and reserves.
	現金流量利率風險指金融工具的未來現金流量會因市場利率變動而波動的風險。基金無須面對重大的現金流量利率風險，因為其持有的主要金融工具都不是浮息金融工具。
	Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.  The Fund is not exposed to material cash flow interest rate risk because it has no major financial instruments bearing interest at a floating rate.
	(e) 貨幣風險
	Currency risk
	貨幣風險指金融工具的公平值或未來現金流量會因匯率變動而波動的風險。
	Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
	基金的一般業務交易是以港元為單位，因而不會引致貨幣風險。
	The Fund’s normal business transactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and therefore do not give rise to currency risk.
	至於以美元為單位的投資，基於港元與美元掛鈎，基金的貨幣風險甚低。
	In respect of investments denominated in United States dollars, owing to the linked exchange rate of the Hong Kong dollar to the United States dollar, the Fund has a very low level of currency risk.
	在報告日，以美元為本位的金融資產總計有5千港元（二零二零年：5千港元）。剩餘的金融資產及所有金融負債均以港元為本位。
	At the reporting date, financial assets totalling HK$5,000 (2020: HK$5,000) were denominated in United States dollars.  The remaining financial assets and all financial liabilities were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
	20. 金融風險管理（續）
	FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
	(f) 其他金融風險
	Other financial risk
	基金因於每年一月釐定的外匯基金存款息率（附註11）的變動而須面對金融風險。於二零二一年三月三十一日，假設二零二零年及二零二一年的息率增加╱減少50個基點 （二零二零年：50個基點）而其他因素不變，估計年度盈利將增加╱減少410萬港元 （二零二零年：350萬港元）。
	The Fund is exposed to financial risk arising from changes in the interest rate on the placement with the Exchange Fund which is determined every January (note 11).  It was estimated that, as at 31 March 2021, a 50 basis point (2020: 50 basis point) increase/decrease in the interest rates for 2020 and 2021, with all other variables held constant, would increase/decrease the profit for the year by HK$4.1 million  (2020: HK$3.5 million).
	(g) 公平值
	Fair values
	在活躍市場買賣的金融工具的公平值是根據報告日的市場報價釐定。如沒有該等市場報價，則以現值或其他估值方法以報告日的市況數據評估其公平值。
	The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date.  In the absence of such quoted market prices, fair values are estimated using present value or other valuation techniques, using inputs based on market conditions existing at the reporting date.
	所有金融工具均以與其公平值相等或相差不大的金額在財務狀況表內列帳。
	All financial instruments are stated in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to or not materially different from their fair values.
	21. 資本承擔
	CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
	在二零二一年三月三十一日，基金尚未在財務報表內撥備的資本承擔如下：
	As at 31 March 2021, the Fund had capital commitments, so far as not provided for in the financial statements, as follows:
	2021
	2020
	已批准及簽約
	Authorised and contracted for
	2,935
	63,678
	已批准惟未簽約
	Authorised but not yet  contracted for
	283,315
	274,798
	總額
	Total
	286,250
	338,476
	22. 已頒布但於截至二零二一年 三月三十一日止年度尚未 生效的修訂、新準則及詮 釋的可能影響
	POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
	直至本財務報表發出之日，香港會計師公會已頒布多項修訂、新準則及詮釋。該等修訂、新準則及詮釋在截至二零二一年三月三十一日止年度尚未生效，亦沒有在本財務報表中提前採納。
	Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2021 and which have not been early adopted in these financial statements.
	基金正就該等修訂、新準則及詮釋在首次採納期間預計會產生的影響進行評估。迄今的結論是採納該等修訂、新準則及詮釋不大可能會對財務報表有重大影響。
	The Fund is in the process of making an assessment of the expected impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations in the period of initial application.  So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the financial statements.





